
P a g e  | 1 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Clean Water and Flood Abatement Task Force 

Thursday, November 3
rd

, 2015 

1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.  

Sussex County Association of Realtors 

Meeting Attendance 

Task Force Members: 

 

Present:     E-mail:     

Senator Bryan Townsend   Bryan.Townsend@state.de.us   

Representative Michael Mulrooney  Michael.Mulrooney@state.de.us  

Senator Bryant Richardson   Bryant.Richardson@state.de.us  

Representative Ronald Gray   Ronald.Gray@state.de.us   

Secretary Jennifer Cohan   Jennifer.Cohan@state.de.us   

Secretary David Small   David.Small@state.de.us   

Holly Porter     Holly.Porter@state.de.us 

Robert Baldwin    robert.baldwin@dacdnet.org   

Thom May     Thom.May@state.de.us   

Howard Morrison    lmorrison@countygrp.com   

Gerard Esposito    jesposito@tuiwater.com 

Paul Morrill     pmorrill@committeeof100.com 

Patty Cannon     Patricia.Cannon@state.de.us 

Brenna Goggin    brenna@delnature.org 

Christine Mason    christine@sussexshoreswater.com 

Dian Taylor     dtaylor@artesianwater.com 
Lew Killmer     lew.killmer@mac.com 

Gerald Kaufman    jerryk@udel.edu   

Jen Adkins     jadkins@delawareestuary.org 

Joseph Corrado    JCORRADO@CORRADO.COM 

Michael Riemann    mriemann@beckermorgan.com 

Bruce Jones     bjones@pennoni.com 

Absent:  
Sam Lathem     lathem.de.aflcio@comcast.net 

Harold Godwin    hgodwin@sussexcountyde.gov 

William Lucks     wlucks@wlucks.com 

Thomas Unruh    townsendunruh@aol.com 

George Haggerty    GOHaggerty@nccde.org 

Jeffrey Bross     Jeff@duffnet.com 

Roy Miller      policy@inlandbays.org 

Kent County Administrator   N/A 

 

Staff: 

Michelle Zdeb     Michelle.Zdeb@state.de.us   

Caitlyn Gordon    Caitlyn.Gordon@state.de.us 

mailto:Bryan.Townsend@state.de.us
mailto:Michael.Mulrooney@state.de.us
mailto:Bryant.Richardson@state.de.us
mailto:Ronald.Gray@state.de.us
mailto:Jennifer.Cohan@state.de.us
mailto:David.Small@state.de.us
mailto:Holly.Porter@state.de.us
mailto:robert.baldwin@dacdnet.org
mailto:Thom.May@state.de.us
mailto:lmorrison@countygrp.com
mailto:jesposito@tuiwater.com
mailto:pmorrill@committeeof100.com
mailto:Patricia.Cannon@state.de.us
mailto:brenna@delnature.org
mailto:christine@sussexshoreswater.com
mailto:dtaylor@artesianwater.com
mailto:lew.killmer@mac.com
mailto:jerryk@udel.edu
mailto:jadkins@delawareestuary.org
file:///C:/Users/Michelle.Zdeb/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/7GWMKPB2/JCORRADO@CORRADO.COM
file:///C:/Users/Michelle.Zdeb/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/7GWMKPB2/mriemann@beckermorgan.com
mailto:bjones@pennoni.com
mailto:lathem.de.aflcio@comcast.net
mailto:hgodwin@sussexcountyde.gov
file:///C:/Users/Michelle.Zdeb/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/7GWMKPB2/wlucks@wlucks.com
file:///C:/Users/Michelle.Zdeb/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/7GWMKPB2/townsendunruh@aol.com
file:///C:/Users/Michelle.Zdeb/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/7GWMKPB2/GOHaggerty@nccde.org
mailto:Jeff@duffnet.com
mailto:policy@inlandbays.org
mailto:Michelle.Zdeb@state.de.us
mailto:Caitlyn.Gordon@state.de.us


P a g e  | 2 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Attendees:     Organization: 

Hans Medlarz     WIAC 

Kitty Holtz     Delaware Farm Bureau 

Ron Fantini     Swann Keys 

Sharon Fatnini     Swann Keys 

Lois Fatini     Swann Keys 

Pat McCamant     Swann Keys 

John McCamant    Swann Keys 

Edward Hallock    DPH 

Chris Brown     CIB 

Mohammad Akhter    Refuge 

Jeanette Akhter    Refuge 
Kash Srinivasan                 Kash Srinivasan Group 

Barbra Shamp     Dirickson Creek Project 

Tom Shamp     Dirickson Creek 

Sari Rothrock     PDE 

Martha Narvez     UD WRA 

S. Douglas Hokuf    NCCD 

David Baird      Sussex Conservation District  

Heather Warren     DPH 

 
The Task Force meeting was brought to order at  1:09 pm. 

Consideration of Meeting Minutes  

Senator Bryan Townsend, Co-Chair, thanked everyone for coming to the Task Force meeting. Next, he 

read out changes that Holly Porter, member, requested be made to the draft September 23
rd

 Meeting 

Minutes. She asked to change the name of an organization that she misstated during her presentation. Ms. 

Porter also asked to change numbers in her presentation in regards to cost-share that farmers have 

received from the Department of Agriculture as opposed to money received from NRCS (National 

Resources Conservation Service) or the Conservation Districts. Senator Townsend added that her changes 

are technical in nature in terms of changing around some numbers. He then asked if anyone else has 

changes that they he would like to see made to the draft Meeting Minutes from September 23
rd

 or October 

15
th
.  

Seeing none, Senator Townsend asked for motions to approve the September 23
rd

 Meeting Minutes (as 

amended by Ms. Porter) and the October 15
th
 Meeting Minutes. The first motion to approve both sets of 

Meeting Minutes was made by Representative Michael Mulrooney, Co-Chair. This motion was seconded 

by Joseph Corrado. The Meeting Minutes from September 23
rd

 and October 15
th
 were approved 

unanimously. 

Review of Current Project Prioritization System 

Senator Townsend moved the discussion onto the second item on the agenda and introduced Hans 

Medlarz, with the Water Infrastructure Advisory Council.  Hans presented Delaware Water Pollution 

Control Revolving Fund Project Priority List Ranking Criteria to Task Force members. 



P a g e  | 3 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Please see the presentation Task Force members received below: 

 



P a g e  | 4 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 



P a g e  | 5 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 

During the presentation, the following questions were asked: 

Paul Morrill, Committee of 100, asked how the set-asides are established, referring to slide 10. He 

continued by asking if Council sets them up or if they are linked to a revenue stream. 

Mr. Medlarz answered that the set-asides are set up by looking at the historical demand and, for the new 

projects, they look at the express demand. He continued by stating that there are many possible projects, 

so a subcommittee discusses the set-asides and then a finance subcommittee vets them. Lastly, the 

Council makes the recommendation for the set-aside. 

Kitty Holtz, attending on behalf of Thomas Unruh, Delaware Farm Bureau, asked what the funding 

sources are. She wanted to know if it is totally State funded or if federal money is involved.  

Mr. Medlarz answered that most of the funding comes from the EPA (Environmental Protection Agency). 

He continued by saying that it is an annual allocation that is set by Congress, which is just below the $10 

billion range. Additionally, there is a match required by the State, and the General Assembly sets this 

match. For the majority of years, the match was fully provided. If you look at it roughly, it’s 80/20 in 

addition to interest payments.  

Mr. Morrill asked how cover crops and storm water regulations would fit into the priority matrix 

presented by Mr. Medlarz. He proposed a scenario where the Council implemented a rainy day fund for 

drainage-type projects. Mr. Morrill followed this scenario by asking how this fund would fit into the 

matrix.  

Mr. Medlarz replied that drainage and flood control do not necessarily fit into this fund. By definition, 

that is how the money comes from the government. The money that they are receiving is meant for water 

quality-type projects. He also stated that Best Management Practices do fit into the matrix. Mr. Medlarz 

added that if a cover crop is a Best Management Practice, then it would be covered in the matrix.   

Mr. Morrill referenced the formula on the third slide of Mr. Medlarz’s presentation, which covers the 

reduction of nitrogen and phosphorus. Mr. Morrill asked if anyone has tried to run the agriculture 

programs through this formula.  



P a g e  | 6 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Mr. Medlarz replied that the formula is a point-source formula, not a non-point formula. He added that if 

one needed to just compare the two, it would be interesting to compare. 

Senator Townsend wanted to confirm the totals on Mr. Medlarz’s presentation and asked how much 

money was available on an annual basis.  

Mr. Medlarz answered that the available funding is around $160 million, on a cash-flow basis. The money 

left over on a cash-flow basis is about $28 million dollars. Mr. Medlarz added that he can pull the exact 

number up at the end of the meeting. 

Senator Townsend asked if there was a hard and fast score cutoff. 

Secretary David Small, Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control, answered that it is 

a combination of cash-flow loan payments coming back into the fund. Additionally, there is a fairly small 

infusion on an annual basis depending on what Congress sets as the appropriation; probably about $10 

million plus $1.4 million State match of new money coming in on an average year. He added that he the 

State has about $160 million of cash available.  

Senator Townsend asked whether or not the State can fund all the projects with no score cutoff. 

Mr. Medlarz answered that the project has to be within the eligible criteria. He referenced Mr. Morrill’s 

comments about a flooding project, which would not get funding because it does not meet the eligibility 

criteria of a water-quality project. Mr. Medlarz recalls years when project priority scoring mattered 

immensely because there was not enough funding available for all of the projects. He said this year is 

deceiving because there is enough funding for all of the projects.  

Mr. Medlarz continued by explaining how the project’s ranking does not matter as much. He referenced 

some of the projects down the list that show up with 2016 numbers, meaning although the project is on 

the list, it will not proceed in 2015. Going forward, Mr. Medlarz would expect years in which ranking 

becomes more critical because of limitations of funds. He added that 10 years ago, Council looked at 

leveraging. If the Council has an income stream, they can consider leveraging if more projects become 

necessary to complete. Mr. Medlarz stated that the State is in a place right now to fund every qualifying 

project.   

Senator Townsend asked why Delaware has so much funding available this year.  

Mr. Medlarz answered that it is not that Delaware has more funding this year, but the State has fewer 

projects that are qualified to fund this year.  

Senator Townsend referenced the projects that are qualified and have a low overall score; he asked if they 

will still get funded.  

Mr. Medlarz answered that it has happened many times, that a low ranking project will move higher than 

a higher ranking project due to availability to proceed. He added that this instance is not exclusive to 

2015, it happens every year. 



P a g e  | 7 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Senator Townsend proposed a scenario of where there is a low ranked project with committed funding, 

and a new project arises with significantly higher scores but no funding. The Senator continued to ask 

how this situation would be balanced. 

Mr. Medlarz responded that the Council has not discussed a cutoff during the years when there is funding 

available. Mr. Medlarz reminded Task Force members that this is a revolving fund. So, the more money 

that the fund can lend, the better the fund can sustain itself. It is not in the fund’s best interest to cut off 

funding because a project has a lower score. 

Mr. Medlarz referenced the Ocean Outfall Project on his Project Priority List, which has 87 points and is 

a $20 million project. He added that if a point score of 20 comes in, it will eat up the remaining $15 

million. It would be a bad idea to fund it, because the next year the Rehoboth Beach Outfall Project would 

be ready to proceed. He added that this is why the Project Priority List is important; it gives you more 

than a one-year snapshot. Mr. Medlarz added that the State will ask for projects 2 or 3 years out to avoid 

running into these problems. 

Senator Bryant Richardson referenced the Project Priority List and asked if the Coverdale Crossroads 

Project should be on this list.  

Mr. Medlarz responded that Coverdale Crossroads would be a great project to have on the Project Priority 

List. However, the project needs to have an entity to repay the loan portion of the project in order to 

apply. He mentioned that he was involved with the Ellendale Project, which included several underfunded 

areas that could not repay the funding. He added that this is more challenging due to the economic factors, 

but this does not mean that it cannot be done.  

Thom May, Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS), added that the criteria is set by the EPA 

themselves, it is not a State policy. He continued by saying that the EPA is the one that requires Delaware 

to have the sub-political jurisdiction in place for a repayment.  

Senator Townsend asked if Sussex County would be qualified to be the repaying jurisdiction. 

Mr. May answered yes.  

Mr. Medlarz also answered that this would be the most logical qualifying jurisdiction. One can have deals 

with entities that they may not think of in the first round. He added that there are also requirements to 

provide loan forgiveness. He continued with an example: a project like Coverdale Crossroads would 

require a significant percentage of loan forgiveness, and would probably require some creative funding. 

He added that one really has to stack these projects high to become reality. 

Senator Richardson asked how these projects would rank, if there was an entity out there that could help 

fund them. 

Mr. Medlarz answered that there would be a septic elimination project, and some water quality aspects. 

He referenced the Sussex County Project, stating that it is a septic elimination project. He added that 

Coverdale Crossroads would probably rank slightly above that one, in the high 60s. 



P a g e  | 8 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Secretary Small added that as Mr. Medlarz pointed out, it is really at its core a loan program, in order to 

meet the affordability levels for a number of communities (Coverdale Crossroads being one example of 

that). He continued saying that the Council had talked about additional infrastructure money to leverage 

loans against grant funding to bring the affordability down to communities who need it. Secretary Small 

added that even if the State could blow through these dollars pretty quickly, the State would not have 

anything left. He also stated that the State is very careful to protect this as a State revolving loan fund, 

from a sustainability point of view.  

Senator Richardson asked if anyone was working on it right now. 

Secretary Small answered yes. He added that there are some people who have been talking with USDA 

(United States Department of Agriculture) Rural Development, which also has some funding available for 

these types of rural water and wastewater projects. Secretary Small stated that utilities have been a part of 

this discussion to come up with a different way to provide these kinds of services. 

Senator Townsend wanted to clarify when Secretary Small said that the State could blow through this 

money quickly, he means if we hand them out in the form of grants. 

Secretary Small answered yes. 

Senator Townsend sought additional confirmation that the grant scenario would be as opposed to a 

revolving fund, whereby if the State lends the money out in the form of loans it will be paid back over 

time with a relatively low interest rate. He added that this would ensure available funds long-term to do 

these projects over and over.  

Secretary Small answered correct.  

Mr. Esposito referenced the Task Force’s past discussion about Coverdale Crossroads, and he added that 

there are two parts to the problem. He stated that Secretary Small has already discussed the O&M 

(Operations and Maintenance) portion and continued by saying that even if the State gets a project 

funded, like Ellendale, with grants and loans, 20 years later there will be losses on operating the projects. 

The dilemma is if the State sets aside money for people who cannot pay their bills, then the people who 

pay their bills are getting penalized. He added that some people take advantage of the fact that they are 

not going to pay their bills because there is money set aside.  

Joseph Corrado, Delaware Contractors Association, added that there are probably a lot of projects on the 

list that won’t go through because the State cannot follow through with the projects just on a loan basis. 

He added that these projects might need some sort of subsidy financing to be able to move forward. Mr. 

Corrado continued by saying they have been finding this issue with many of the outlying municipalities, 

who would like to do a project but cannot move forward with it on just a loan basis.  

Secretary Small added that in some cases communities need to put out a referendum and put this vote out 

to their citizens to borrow money. There is often a reluctance to do that.  

Senator Townsend wanted to know if there is a database that shows the numbers of times that projects did 

put the referendum out and failed, as opposed to not putting out the referendum at all.  



P a g e  | 9 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Secretary Small responded that the State probably does not have that in database form but they could 

probably put some examples together and share. 

Mr. May stated that when Ellendale tried to put in a public drinking water system, it failed because the 

town voted against it two years ago.  

Senator Townsend asked if there is a happy story where the town voted yes. 

Mr. May responded that many towns answered yes, such as Selbyville, Georgetown, and Milford. He 

added that from the drinking water side, towns have been very successful. But with the Ellendale 

situation, it took several years to put the project together, and the community still voted no.  

Senator Townsend asked Mr. May what the margin was on this vote. 

Mr. May asked his colleague, Edward Hallock, to address Senator Townsend’s question. 

Edward Hallock, Division of Public Health, answered that the margin was 2-1 against.  

Mr. Medlarz added that on the drinking water side, the vast majority of these referenda have passed. 

Additionally, the vast majority of citizens who voted honestly wanted it. 

Senator Townsend asked if there is a specific percentage of the number of projects involving loan  

forgiveness, or if it is more a matter of having a few examples.  

Mr. Medlarz replied that on smaller projects, Delaware has 100% of loan forgiveness and only pays 

interest during construction.  

Dian Taylor, Delaware Business Roundtable, asked that when these dollars are loaned or granted, have 

communities done anything to adjust rates so they are building sustainability in their water or wastewater 

system? 

Mr. Medlarz answered that they have seen projects come through when the town did not believe how 

much their O&M is going to come in. 

Secretary Small added that the State has proposed to come up with a system, working with a local 

political jurisdiction, to look harder at the mean household income level. Then, they seek to identify if 

there are subsets in the community that fall at the bottom of the affordability scale and adjust the project 

funding terms accordingly. This way, the State’s funding can reflect what the actual economic conditions 

are within that community. The State is trying to use as many tools as they can to work with communities.  

It will take a large level of research but it is doable.  

Mr. Medlarz confirmed that another way the State can do this is by taking an income survey.  The income 

survey could help avoid long-term delinquencies.  

Senator Townsend asked if this approach was ready to go live. 

Mr. Medlarz responded saying that it is ready to go. He added that if an entity came in today and said that 

they would like to identify the subset or know the subset, the State can request that its loan-forgiveness 



P a g e  | 10 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

dollars be targeted to this subset and then have these dollars flow in on a cash basis to subsidize the utility 

bills. 

Senator Townsend referenced the projects on the list.  He asked if there would be a modification of the 

projects on the basis of the income subsets by resubmitting the project application, or by working out the 

details on the backend as opposed to having to do that on the front end.  

Mr. Medlarz answered that one could reinvestigate the subsections and try to identify a certain project. He 

added that retroactivity has not come up as a question to the Council. Once the project is closed, that ship 

has sailed.  

Senator Townsend added that he was referring to the ones that have not closed yet, the ones that are not 

on the Project Priority List.  

Secretary Small responded that the Council would be open to it.  If any of the applicants on the list 

wanted to do an analysis prior to closure, the Council would be happy to work with them. 

Senator Townsend clarified whether or not those applicants have been made aware of that. 

Secretary Small answered that the Council needs to do a better job on getting that out. 

Holly Porter, Delaware Department of Agriculture, asked if the fund has a threshold for a default amount. 

She also asked if there had been a set standard of 10% in possible default.  

Patty Cannon, Delaware Economic Development Office, referenced the subsets that have been talked 

about and wanted to know how recent that data has to be. She continued by stating the two entities who 

do surveys are the Census Bureau and the Delaware Department of Labor.  She asked if it would have to 

be a survey more recent than that.  

Secretary Small answered that he does not have a specific answer to that.  

Lew Kilmer, Delaware League of Local Governments, also answered that the census data does not go 

deep enough. He stated that the State needs MHI (Median Household Income) data to identify subsets. 

Not everyone reports MHI, and that’s what the Council needs for us to create this targeted body. He also 

stated that there needs to be 50% responses for subsets.  

Mr. Medlarz stated that the over the past 20 years, Council has done a great job by putting the Project 

Priority List together. He further stated that this list has been recognized by the EPA, and it has been 

changed to meet current conditions on an annual basis. He stated that he commends the Council for what 

they have done.  

Secretary Small mentioned that he has the list of projects lined up by legislative districts that the Task 

Force asked for. 

Senator Townsend added that two things have come up throughout the course of most meetings. For one, 

the priority scheme here is extremely nuanced and effective; for those who want to assume or pretend like 

it is not, it’s important to look at the history and the facts. He added that the other important factor is, in 

terms of the legislative districts, it is only for the projects that have submitted applications. He added that 



P a g e  | 11 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

there are probably other lists that should be made. The Senator asked members if there are other groups 

who need to pull the different issues occurring across Delaware of which legislators should be aware. He 

added that the Delaware Department of Transportation and the Department of Natural Resources and 

Environmental Control have applied for projects in other areas. He noted that the Task Force should 

assemble a list like this for the final report. 

Mr. Esposito responded that the list the Task Force keeps talking about, the “Strong Community List,” is 

comprised of water and sewer communities that do not get on this list for lack of sponsorship. He 

continued by saying that this is why what is not on the Project Priority List is also important because of 

the concern that the entity who would sponsor it does not want to get stuck with something the entity 

cannot handle.  

Senator Townsend responded that he agrees. The Task Force needs to address issues that might not make 

it onto the list. He added that a full list would add constitute a comprehensive view of the issues in 

Delaware. 

Ms. Taylor asked if this list could be circulated to all the members. 

Senator Townsend replied certainly. He added that he would be happy if this list was a part of the final 

report, but he hopes this list could be circulated with Task Force members prior to that.  

Secretary Jennifer Cohen added that there is a list of roads that have routine flooding issues.  

Senator Townsend responded that this issue would be worth a presentation because flooding is one of the 

issues that the Task Force is dealing with, as is the debate regarding whether it is optimal for Delaware to 

fund these issues versus alternative projects.  

Ms. Porter added that this list might need to be done in layers. Each district would have layers within 

them revolving around different issues.   

Senator Townsend replied certainly. He added that the Task Force has already discussed educating 

legislators of the issues. He continued by saying that there is also a challenge that some issues are going 

to overlap in terms of possible sources of funding and the interrelationship of the issues. At the very least, 

Senator Townsend iterated the importance of making the report as clear as possible. He continued by 

saying there could be a chart listing each issue by district.  

Mr. Medlarz added that the Council and the university are both very proud of the Project Priority List.  It 

has a lot of good data feeding into it, and it’s vetted. He added that he would really hate to see it watered 

down just because there is a need here, there is no definition of cost and no allocation where the need 

exists, and there is no number of customers affected. He stated that all of these pieces of interest are 

compiled to complete this list. He asserted that doing this would be taking a good product and decreasing 

the effectiveness of it. Mr. Medlarz added that if there is some project that members feel should be on this 

list, like Coverdale Crossroads for example, the Council could try to rank them for the member. 

Senator Townsend thanked Mr. Medlarz for two of his unintended water puns; one was “down the drain” 

from earlier, and the other was “watered down” just now. He added that the members are not necessarily 

asking the Council to create a list to fit into the Project Priority List framework. He clarified that he would 



P a g e  | 12 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

like to make a list mapping out the prioritization scheme, then form another list mapping out chronic 

flooding issues in Delaware that DelDOT takes a look at. Additionally, the Task Force could form a 

separate list of projects that could be on the Project Priority List but are not. Senator Townsend clarified 

that there will be several separate lists.  

Mr. Morrill added that he thinks there is a level of prioritization that is sort of above this list. He added 

there has not been an incorporation of agricultural issues. He asked if the Task Force will make a separate 

level of prioritization for that. 

Senator Townsend clarified that he meant in terms of the Project Priority List framework he wants to stay 

away from forcing everything into it. However, there should be a much broader list addressing other 

issues.   

Secretary Small responded by saying that the Council will take that as a challenge and will have a list of 

underserved communities too. There’s a range of examples that fit on that list. Secretary Small noted that 

the Task Force needs to consider whose responsibility it is to operate and maintain the project. 

Senator Townsend responded that the list may be a little fuzzy, and that is okay.   

Presentation on Economic Considerations 

Senator Townsend moved the discussion along to the next item on the agenda and introduced Jerry 

Kauffman, a member, who presented Economics and Water in Delaware to Task Force members. 

Please see the presentation task force members received below: 



P a g e  | 13 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 



P a g e  | 14 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 



P a g e  | 15 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 



P a g e  | 16 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 

 



P a g e  | 17 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 

 



P a g e  | 18 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

During the presentation, the following questions were asked: 

Senator Townsend asked how difficult or easy would it be to do the cost/benefit analysis of specific 

projects and how quickly could it happen. 

Jerry Kauffman, University of Delaware, answered that they have the templates, models, data and the 

cost. But for the benefits, if you are looking at the existing value that is established, it can be broken down 

by project watersheds. Then, you estimate what the benefits would be. 

Senator Townsend responded by asking if this is nuanced enough to figure out more than just the average 

value of an additional gallon of clean water. Senator Townsend also asked if this can be tied to the local 

areas in Delaware in terms of what tributaries they are on, and what the local economy is in that area.  

Mr. Kauffman answered that with the GIS (Geographic Information System) system that the State has, it 

can be broken down into 46 watersheds.  

Senator Townsend referenced possible legislation where utilities would be able to recover the costs of 

clean water projects in their base. He asked if there were any comments on that.  

Mr. Kauffman responded that this was actually proposed by the water program, but others would need to 

be involved in establishing such a system. 

Secretary Small noted that this could help, and he could get a number. However, a change like that in the 

wastewater world would not have an impact like that, in terms of customers in the water supply world. 

The ability of private utilities to provide wastewater services in Delaware is a much younger program in 

terms of the level of maturity. There are territories that are ripe for expansion, but the counties and 

municipalities already occupy a lot of that service space. He added that any tool would help. However, 

Secretary Small was not certain that it would have the order of magnitude benefit that the water supply 

issue did.  

Mr. Esposito added to Secretary Small’s point by saying that his company got into the wastewater 

business about 7 or 8 years ago, and Tidewater only has 8 wastewater systems in the State. Each system 

has a tariff, which makes the system even more complex. In the wastewater world, the blending will not 

happen easily. A legislative fix is to enable a company who does both to cross-subsidize. If people who 

drink water are willing to pay to help the whole State, Delaware could get water customers to help a small 

wastewater community and this would make it affordable. Pennsylvania has this system, and it would be 

a great legislative fix. 

Ms. Cannon commented that she is a customer of Artesian Water and she pays extra for the service line. 

She added if Artesian Water asked her to pay a little more to help pay for your friends and neighbors who 

do not have service line protection, she would tell them to stop providing her these services so she would 

not have to pay at all.   

Ms. Taylor referenced Artesian Water customers who would be fairly adamant about not paying more for 

other people.  It is easy for a municipality to keep its fares lower, and a customer who is paying the 

correct fare rates would not want to subsidize that.  



P a g e  | 19 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Senator Townsend commented that Mr. Esposito had an interesting idea but it comes down to how this 

question was presented to the payer. He added that we should find out in what ways the public is willing 

to pay for clean water. Water is interconnected, so dirty water will affect everybody. Senator Townsend 

also asked a question referring to possible legislation that would allow for clean water investments to be 

put into the rate base, although in the context of wastewater Secretary Small said this might not have as 

big of an impact because of how new it all is. The Senator asked if anyone has additional comments or 

thoughts on this.   

Mr. Esposito responded that he would not want to support a subsidy for a system that was benefitting 

from the fact that they are getting money from a well-run utility. He added that the legislation of 

Pennsylvania allows a company that works with both water and sewer to cross-subsidize. 

Senator Townsend responded that another example would be that this is just the general framework for 

clean water investments to be put back into the rate base. It could be a variety of forms other than the 

customer enjoying the benefit of it directly. If you tell your customers that they are benefiting from it, 

they may be more willing to accept higher rates.  

Brenna Goggin, Delaware Nature Society, told Mr. Kauffman that what she loved about his presentation 

is how it shows that there is a value in investing in both farmland preservation and open space and that 

they both provide an equal investment back into the economy.   

Mr. Kauffman responded by saying that farmland has significant economic value. 

Representative Ronald Gray asked if there are more matching funds with farmland than open space at a 

federal level. 

Ms. Goggin responded that the farmland is a federal match that is set, not competitive, whereas matching 

money on the federal side for open space comes from diverse funding sources that are competitive. This is 

why it is important that both projects have an equal amount of money from the State. 

Ms. Porter added that on the federal matches, it is becoming a bit more difficult in recent years due to 

some changes in the Farm Bill. She continued by saying that there is a lot more criteria that may not fit 

well with Delaware’s Agland Preservation Program. 

Secretary Small stated that on the parks side, there is a lot more competition for funding that can leverage 

open space dollars through federal grant programs. However, for fish and wildlife there are set funds 

available. For every dollar that the State generates, the State gets three federal dollars. So, if the State was 

using federal dollars to match acquisition for 3-1, it is just a matter of whether Delaware has local dollars.   

Ms. Cannon asked about Mr. Kauffman’s model for cost/benefit analysis.  She said it raises a question 

about how the people in Ellendale fit into that model.  She added that the Task Force should not forget 

that. 

Senator Townsend responded that the term “environmental justice” has been talked about, and this is a 

difficult issue. He also asked Mr. Kauffman to help during the writing of the report when it comes to 

quantification of these issues; he added this would be extremely helpful.   



P a g e  | 20 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Mr. Kauffman replied that he would be happy to help with the preparation of the report. 

Review of Other States’ Efforts 

Senator Townsend moved the meeting along to the next item on the agenda and introduced Frank Piroko, 

with DNREC, who presented State Program Funding Efforts to Task Force members. 

Please see the presentation task force members received below: 



P a g e  | 21 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 



P a g e  | 22 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 

[Note: pages 23-30 were additional handouts given during Mr. Piorko’s presentation.] 

 



P a g e  | 23 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 



P a g e  | 24 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 

 



P a g e  | 25 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 



P a g e  | 26 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 

 



P a g e  | 27 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



P a g e  | 28 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 



P a g e  | 29 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



P a g e  | 30 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 

 

 

 



P a g e  | 31 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

During the presentation, the following questions were asked: 

Representative Gray noted that Mr. Piorko surveyed about 748 people and he got 70 back, which is 

unbelievable because the community is up in arms, and only 10% came forward to say there is a problem. 

Mr. Corrado asked if Mr. Piorko had looked at NY at all. 

Mr. Piorko answered no. They were focusing on Region III states because they had the most information 

about them, but he offered to look into New York. 

Ms.Goggin mentioned that Mr. Piorko called out two commonwealths, who give most of their 

responsibilities to counties and municipalities. She added that three years ago, Pennsylvania passed the 

Storm Water Authority Bill. This bill allows municipalities and local governments to create a storm water 

funding mechanism that has never existed before. Ms. Goggin stated that Virginia and their larger local 

governments have all passed storm water utilities; maybe the Task Force should look into this a little 

further.   

Senator Townsend asked if there were more questions.  Seeing none, he moved the discussion on to 

public comment. 

Public Comment  

Barbara Shamp read a letter to Task Force members, which may be viewed below: 



P a g e  | 32 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 



P a g e  | 33 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 



P a g e  | 34 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 



P a g e  | 35 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 



P a g e  | 36 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

 



P a g e  | 37 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

 

[Note: the attachment below was a supplement to Ms. Shamp’s letter.] 

 



P a g e  | 38 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Mohommad Akhter stated that he came to Delaware from DC and mentioned that seeing Task Force 

stakeholders around the table was very inspiring. He stated three recommendations for the Task Force; he 

added that if members think that these recommendations make sense, then they should adopt them. Mr. 

Akhter added that members are here for their children, grandchildren, and the great state of Delaware. He 

suggested that members step back and take a fresh look to move the needle, and ask what else needs to be 

done to move the needle. 

3 recommendations: 

 Develop a training program to educate communities that are most affected so they can organize a 

plan to benefit from the resources provided by the State. Delaware has a recent community of 

retirees who are well educated; they can play a huge role in organizing and educating the 

community. The community will not take these options because they are not educated.  

 This committee could be a permanent committee that meets every three months. All members 

play a very important role; Mr. Akhter added that this encourages him. He continued by saying 

that he has never seen so many state agencies and stakeholders listening to issues and providing 

input.  

 If the State does not have dedicated funds, which people can rely on, this issue will not be solved  

He thanked Task Force members for giving him this opportunity.  

Open Discussion by Task Force 

Senator Townsend thanked both of the public members for their comments. He then added that the Task 

Force still needs to talk about dedicated funding, and the different structures for how the State goes about 

spending dedicated money. Senator Townsend added that the Task Force also needs to address the 

amount of money needed and where they would get it.  

Ms. Cannon stated that she had an RFI (Request for Information) that came in, and they asked about 

Delaware’s agricultural transfer tax. Knowing that we do not have one, she researched it to find that 

Maryland and Texas both have this tax. Their state’s local governments give a 25% relief on property tax 

if it is used on agriculture. Ms. Cannon continued to ask if this could be used for open space. If the owner 

sells their property for redevelopment, then the developer would pay a surcharge tax. She asked if that tax 

would be a way to keep the site clean and if Secretary Small was aware of either state’s program.  

Secretary Small answered no. He added that in Delaware, both the agriculture land preservation program 

and the open space program are funded by $10 million from the realty transfer tax to those two programs. 

He continued by saying he can do some research on how the other states operate.  

Mr. Morrill referenced all of the numbers, and mentioned before the Task Force gets into the dedicated 

fund discussion, the aggregate needs should be compiled in a concise way, on an overall basis and on an 

annualized basis. 

Secretary Small added that Mr. Piorko, and some people from DNREC, have been putting those numbers 

together. There are some numbers members have seen and others they haven’t.  DNREC is hoping to put 

the full numbers together later this week. 



P a g e  | 39 

 

Minutes prepared by Caitlyn Gordon, Legislative Aide 
Minutes reviewed by Michelle Zdeb, Legislative Assistant & Task Force Staffer 
 

Senator Townsend asked if it was in regard specifically to water quality. 

Secretary Small answered yes. 

Ms. Goggin asked if this includes the Department of Agriculture’s and DelDOT’s numbers too. 

Secretary Small replied that it includes agriculture BMP (Best Management Practices) costs but they do 

not have DelDOT’s numbers. 

Senator Townsend reminded everyone that the next meeting is the 19
th
 of November from 2:00 PM – 4:00 

PM in the House Hearing Room. He continued by saying that in the next couple of days, he will make 

sure agencies are coming together to make sure they are coming up with the all-in numbers that the Task 

Force members would like to see. Prior to the 19
th
, Task Force members will see some of these numbers 

and information to spark discussion at the next meeting. He added that there might also be a preliminary 

outline of the report to review content and framing. 

Mr. Morrill asked if members could be sent this information well prior to the meeting. 

Ms. Cannon asked the individuals from the University of Delaware for a favor. She added that this will 

not be put in the hardcopy report but it would be nice to have a map of Delaware where all issues have a 

GIS link to it. If you click somewhere, the map will notify the user that “DelDOT identified this property 

as a flood zone,” etc. She added that as these lists are being developed, it would be nice to have a 

geographic address with them to feed into a map. 

Mr. Kauffman answered that with GIS one could do anything, so the answer is yes. 

Ms. Cannon added that even maybe in the report you could include a link to the map. 

Senator Townsend replied that he is not sure about the timing and cost it takes to develop this resource, 

but hopefully this can be implemented. He added that the idea of this Task Force being on-going, he 

added that this is a huge piece of the Task Force. Senator Townsend added that hopefully this could be 

done in the context of the report.  

Senator Townsend asked Task Force members for additional questions or comments.  As there were none, 

the Task Force meeting was brought to a close at 3:38 pm. 


